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Jonee Fonseca 
[:.' :c ~_ f:~ l!) 

SUPor.l!)r Ct.!';rl eJ, 6P.~i t"rnIA 
OUntvo(~ 

Mother of Israel Stinson 
2 Address A~R 14 2016 

3 Telephone withheld for privacy but 
4 provided to Court and Respondent 

J : .::0 Ch~t!o ./ 
Er.cCIJI 'I;} O~i l e , 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

... " ,/ 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER 

UNLIMITED CML JURISDICTION 

11 Israel Stinson, a minor, by lance Fonseca his 
mother. 

Case No. 8 CV 0 0-3.7 6 73 ", 
12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Petitioner, 

v, 

UC Davis Children's Hospital; Kaiser 
Permanente Roseville Medicaf Center­
Women and Children's Center. 

Respondent. 

II-----------------~ 

VERIFIED EX·PARTE PETmOtugR, /' . 
TEMPORARY RESTRAINING .. ' ... . , 
ORDERIINJUNCTION: REQUEST pOR 
ORDER OF INDENDENT 
NEUROLOGICAL EXAM; REQUEST FOR 
ORDER TO MAIljTIN LEVEL OF 
MEDICAL CARE . ' 

: ', /" . ' . 

.... 

.' :. ',' 
.1 ',. 

, ' : 

22 I lance Fonseca am the mother ofIsrael Stinson who, oo-April-.l:,:2016 went to' M~rcy ". 
:.; : '. ! .' :: .:.: ::)', ;:·-; ':·r"Li.: 

23 Hospital with symptoms' of an asthma attack. The Emergency room 'e~amhied him, placed him 
: :; ' . • ; .: ," ' ; : : : 'I ",') , . : , 

24 on a breathing machine, and he underwent x·rays, Shortly thereafje" h~ .bogen.shivering, his lips 
; . ., . ' 

25 

26 

27 

28 

" c:\; : 
turned purple, eyes rolled back and lost csoncswiuOosness" H~ had an intubation performe don . ' , 

him, Doctor told me they had to transcer Israel to UC Davis because they did not have. padi.tri, 

unit. lIE was then taken to UC Davis via ambulance and admitted to the padiatric intensive care 

• 1 ~ ". .' " ." \ ~: 
Petition rorTemporl!l1')' Rutralnlng OrderllnJunetion and Otlier Ordor. . " 

:.,,' , J •. " '". ' !, . H' t l!.'! , ,, ', \ . , .. :/~' :: 

. " . .: ; ' ': : 

Case 2:16-cv-00889-KJM-EFB   Document 14-2   Filed 05/01/16   Page 2 of 11
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. : . 
, . t . : '.; : . . , . , " . . 

, , 

. ": .. . ~ .'. ':i~ 

unit. The next day, the tub. was removed from Israel. Tho respirttory ,theraPi!t.ald ihat israel " 
, . ~' . 

was stable and that they could possibly dJscharge him the folloWing 4ay,.Supday April 3. They . . . . . ' 

put him on albuterol for one hour, and then wanted to take him offalbuterol fQr ~Aour"About - .' ,.. . . ..' .. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

30 minutes in, I noticed that he began to wheeze and havo issues breathing. The.nurse came back · . . ' , . . .. . , . '., , . 

12 

13 

in and put him on the albuterol machine. Within a few minute, the ~onitor started beeping, Th. 

nurse cam. in and r.posltioned the mask on Israel, then left the room, 

Within mlnut.s, h. started to .hiv.r and w.nt limp in her arms, i~res~~dihe .~W:se~' button, and 

screamed for help, but no one came to the room. A different nurSe came' iii; ~d I B!Iked to see a 
. .' . 

::" . .:. " .. " .• / : ' . ':,!: ; .' 
doctor. The doctor~ Dr. Mcteev clime to the room and said she did nofwant to intubate Israel to 

see if h. could br.ath. on hi. owii without the tube, 
, ·i. . ' : . '. , \ ' : 

. i ,, ' ;. .: '; ': . : f :. " , 
I.rael was not breathing on his own, I had to leave the room to compose myi.lf. When I 

... ;" ": 1'.: . b :: " \i'~''' ''~''i '~:' : '':'''.' 
14 came back five minutes later, the doctors were perfonning CPR, The doctorS ili'miS,ed iIio frOm 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

: : ~ " : " "., ', :" :.; ',; , :! ! I . • , I ' 1: ' .:." 
the room again while they performed CPR for the next forty (40) minutes, ' 

" . 
Dr, Meteev told me that brael was going to m~e it and that he would be .put.on an ECMO to 

.. . :-: .. :. , . I : . ,:: ' "A ,.:':. !i ' i 

support his heath and lungs. Dr, Meteev aiso told me that Israel 'mlght have a blockage in his 
.' . ':" ; 

. j .... . . ,' . 

right lung b.caus. he was not able to receive any oxygen, A puimonalaglst checked .I,tael's righ . . . ,'::' 
lung, and he did Dot have any blockage, 

Dr. Meteev then indicated that there was a possibility Israel will have b.rain damage. HE . . '. . . . . '. ' . . 
"" ..... ",' .', .' . 

was ,edated twice due to this blood pressure being high, and was placed on an ECMO .m~chine . . ".. . . . 
'. I · .' "" ' .. ",; , .: , ... "' 

and ventilator machine. ',,: '. , ' j " ":' "' . 

25 On Sunday April 3, 2016, A brain test was conducted a'-I;raei'to determine possihility 0 

: '" . ' I '. : , ,,.: c. . '. ,; .: ! : 

26 brain damage while he was hooked up to the ECMO machine. The test i~volved .poking his eye . 

27 

28 

, " .' . L ·1 ' . • :" . 
with a Q·tip, banging on bI. knee, flashing a light in his eye, fluShing ,.,.ator down his ear, and 

t . " ...... : I.:." . .' ': ",' , ,:"'. " 
.... 

·2· 
p,tltlon fur Temporary Restraining OrdcrlInJunction' !lnd O'ih~r ~ro~n 

' \ ' . . , . : . 
I 

, 
'. 
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putting a stick down his throat to check his gag reflexes. On Aprll.4. 2016, the same tests were 

2 performed when he was taken of the ECMO machine. On April i;~20 6 hi, was taken:offthe;;. 

3 ECMO machine because his hearth and lungs w.re functionlng ·on·th ir oWn. However, the next 

4 

5 

6 

• ; .. 
day, a radio.ctive te.t w.s performed to determine blood flow to the rain. 

I begged for an MRl and cr scan to be done on Israel before e third and final doctor 

7 performed the test. This was don. on April 10, 2016. These results. II have not been glven.!o 

8 

9 

me. and I've been told that the results are only "preliminary. It 

On April II, 2016, Isr.el was transferred vi. ambulanc. to Kai;er H pita! in Rosv.m •. That 
10 ':'. ' , ' '! . : .' ~ , . ~ \ . 

night, another reflex test was done, in addition to an apnea test. Then 01\ April 14, 2016, an 
II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

. , . 
.... . : .. ; .... ,::.: .. . .... , •. ; j. J •.• .. 

additional reflex test was done. 
•.• • • 'j .• , . ; . 

I am a Christian and believe in the healing power of God. i do not willit him. pulled 'Iff... ~ 
. .., .... "iVli? . 

life support. Kaiser has said that they h.ve the right to r.mov~.'8r •• 1 ;0~U;.,.uPport.... 6 11~~ 

I am hereby asking that Kaiser Permanente Roseville Medical Center b. prevented from ~ ) 
removing my ,on, Israel Stinson, from his ventilator. 

If Kaiser removes Israel from a respirator and he stops breathi g then 'they will have 
. , , . .. ,'., . , . •. ' . . ' I .. 

ended his life as well as their responsibility to provide his future care oith~barm. their 
. . \. I 

'. .' . , , '.',' ' '. 

20 negligence cawed. For this reason we hereby request that an in~~pc'n e~t ~x:am.in.a~!,~ be .. .. . ' 

21 performed, including the use ofan EEO and a cerebral blood floW _.tu y.J .~lso request that 
22 .. . " ;.,:,', .. . . . 

Kaiser Permanente Roseville Medical Center be ordered to continu.e .provide ,uch care arid 
23 . . 
24 treatment to Israel that is necessary to maintain his physical h~~~ an promC)te any opportunity 

25 for healing and recovery of his brain and body. Failure to Is~u • . the Re training Order will ,esult 

26 in irreversible and irreparable harm so a basis in both law and Jact exi Is for this cow:t's .' 

27 

28 
intervention. 

.. . .. ... . : .: .. ' , .. ' . 

.: .. ' ' .. .... . 

• 3 ~ . 
Petition for Temporary Restraining Order/Injunction ;uid ther.Orden ... 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

! ..... 

I 
. i ~ •. .. ' , 

LEGAL ARGUMENT , 
I . 

California Haalth and Safety Code Section 7180 (a) (The Unifol1ll De)ermination of 

Death Act) provides for a legal detemination of brain death as follows; "(a) An Individual who 

has sustained either (1) irroverSible c .... tion of circulatory and respiratory functions,or (2), 

irreversible cessation of all functions of the entire brain, including; th~ brain stem, is dead. A 
. . , . 

detennination of death must be made in accordance with accepted medical standards," 
. I . • ' ; •• 

Health and Safety Code Section 7181 provides for an "independent" verification of any 
. . i . 

such detennination stating; "When an individual is pronounced dead by'determining that the , . . 

individual has sustained an irroverSible cessation of all functions of tiJ. entin; brain, including th 
' . . ; : ' . ~. " : ' I ! :,' •• 

brain stem, there shall be Indtpendent confirmation by another physician," 
. ' . . : . ' ": .. ,., . .. 

As established by the Court in Dority v Superior Court (1983)' 145 Cal.App,3d 273. 278, 
.;. , : . : .. : ;, •. ) ·· ... f. ; .; ,' ' .... '. 

this CoUrt has jurisdiction over the issue of whether 8 person is "brain dead': or not purSuant to 
' . . ~ .. .. . , t . '.' ·L,. 

Health and Safety Code Sections 7180 & 7181. Acknowledging the moral and religious 
, , :; ,: ;. : , .:~ 

implications of such a diagnosis and co~clusiont the 'Dority court d~termined tha~ it would be 
,,' . , : .. " "' ; .. , . . .. 

"unwise" to deny courts the authority to make such a determination when circumstances 
, . ' 

' " :. , .. ... 
warranted. ~:teeI ~Ik.. 

, '. ,I: 

Here only doctors from hULdm ~al Medical Ce:n~r haY.~ ~x~ined -., As 
.. , . . ' . : ; 

stated above, I do not trust them to be independent given how the~ ar~ ,..~onsible for her current 
22 . ' :, ' ;' " .. " .. :. ~ . 

condition and they have a conflict of interest in determining h'e! 'co~di~Qn; .~ spc' ~s. ~sc.o~.ected 
23 . . ' .' , . ' . ....... ' : .'" ',:. I " ' , I, ' 

24 and dead, they no longer have to pay for any of her care, if she is severely prahi dam~ed, but 
.. . ... . . 1, ' 1 . . ' '. 

25 not brain dead. they may bel_gally liable to provide her ongoing care and treatment at Anaheim 

26 Regional or elsewhere. 

27 

28 

·4· . 

.' I" 

' . 

.\. ' , : '. ,', " '., 

. .. ," . 

., 

;'.' 

Petition for Temponry Restralnlng OrdernnJunction and O~her .cH·ders 
, . 

I .. ' .' .. •. 1 ' 
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;.' , . ! 

Only one other case of this type is on record in Califorilia n ~Iy the case of Jshi ' ' 

2 McMath which was heard in Alameda County in December of20l3. 'That elise, on. offir;t 

3 impression, where Nailsh Winkfield challenged Children's Hospital' akland's aeiermmation' of 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

, , 

brain death after they negligently treated her daughter, Jshi, led to Order, issued by-Hon E. 

Grillo, holding that an independent determination i. On. which is 'per ormed by. physician with 

no affiliation with the hospital facility (in that case Children's Hospi Oakland) which was 

believed to have committed the malpractice which led to the debilita l g brain injuries Jahi 
, , 

9 suffered. A true and correct copy of Judge Grillo's Order is attached to this Petition. Inth~ 
10 " , 'C, " , " '" ' .".',, ' ct 

McMath case, the Trial Court rejected the Hospital's position that th Court had no jurisdiction 
11 , " " ~ :".",' ':;':'. ~:; ~ ' : . .. 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

over the detennination of whether not Jabi McMath was ubrain dead' or not. 
, • .• ," . .I ' , : ., : ,.' \ . 

In McMath, Judge Grillo stated that the Section 7180's langu ge regarding "accepted 
; . ' ,: :, , :. ' ;l,:,:, .I: It' ·, 

medical standard." perrnlned an inquiry into whether the second phyician (also affiliated with 
•• ' \ r ' 

Children's Hospital Oakland) was "independent" as that term was de med under Section 7181. 
" , 

Ju~go Grillo determined that the petitioner's due process rights waul . be pro,tected by a focused 

proceeding providing limited discovery and the right to the presentati n of evidence, 

19 The Court detennined tha~ WIder cIrcUmstances which are strikingly lmil;" to 'th~s~ which, 

20 present themselves here, the conflict presented was such that.the co 
I " ' . ' •• ,:: ' ;. : .' ' • ..•• ; . .. : 

fOWld: that the ,Petitioner 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

was entitled to have an independent physician, unaffiliated with,Chil n's Hospi\j1l, pakland, , 

preform neurological testing, an EEG and a cerebral blood flow stud 
; '.: .. ' '., : 1,.: .. " " . ;. ;: . 

Indeed, the .court ' , .' ' 

',', ;'" '. 
Ordered Children's Hospital Oakland to permit the Court's own court appointed expert to be 

.: , 

. . . i· ·: . ;.," , . ' \ ': ' " 
given temporary privileges and access to the Hospital's facilities, 'dia ost,ic equipment, and 

,. , ". 
technicians necessary to perform an "independent" exam. 

. ... ,. 

, , ' 

, , ' . . . ' . " , . .. , .. , " ' .... ' . ' . 

.s, 
PetlUon for Temporary Rcatralnlna OrderlInJuncUon"and I ther Onltin·:,.l . '; . '. ,., 

; '. . ~ 
', . "' .. , ; , 
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t-'. U UC/ U IU 

As in Dority and McMath, the unique circumstances of this case invoke the Court1s 

2 jurisdiction and due process considerations requir~ that this Court Il'an! Petitioner's Petition for a 
~~Ue. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

Temporary Restraining Order and order that A1.lIeh~ R41glmial Me4lca1·Center,permit Petitioner 
~~~~{Le . 

to obtain an independent medical examination at ~m Regional :Medica1 Center with the . 

assistance of The Medical Center's diagnostic equipment and techniCians necessary to carry out 

the standard neurologic brain death examination with a repeat EEG .ind a Cerebral Blood Flow 

Study, 

In order ~rovide,the requisite physical conditions for a reli~ble set of tests to be 

performed, !:' ,omja ~~~nue to be treated so as to p;o~id"~;;';;"" physical health 
. " " . ,';". ;',', ',' :., . 

and in such a manner so as to not interfere with the neurological testing (such as the use of 
., .. . '. , 

' , '" 

13 sedatives or paralytics), ' : i , 

14 WHEREFORE, petitioner prays: 
' ...... : l , ~.:. ,' , ., ' ,,' ",lI; , 1;1" 

IS 

16 

-: :1 ; . ;'.~ ~', ,,'" '" ',.' " 
I) That a Temporary Restraining Order precluding Respondents from removing 

. . .. ;: !' ' '''. '". ;. . . " 

Israel Stinson from respiratory support, or removing or withholding medical treatment be issuedi 

2) That an Order be iS9ued that ReSpondents are to continue to provide Israel 
, 

Stinson treatment to maintain hls.·optimurn physical health and in·such.a.manner so as to not 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

interfere with the neurological testing (such as the use of sedatives o~ 'p~'i~i~'~ ~n ~uch a manner 
.. ,'" .,: ... . ',: ' . ;~".,.,, ; 

andlor at such time that they may interfere with the accuracy of the results), ,. 
. " .. , :;;. ' '. ;: , 

3) That an Order be issued that Petitioner is entitled fO an .indrpendent 

neurological examination, with the assistance of Kaiser Pemlan~nte ~osevil.~~ Medical C.enter's 
. .' :':. ,. :: : ... ,, " .: .. :: :-":' . '. <.: 

diagnostic equipment and technicians necessary to cany out the .s~d~d neurq19gic brain ·d~th 
' . i • . . 

26 examination with a repeat EEO and a Cerebral Blood Flow Study, 

27 , " 

" 

: .'. , 

28 . , . .• . .. .. 1 : • 

.. I~ .' 

·6· 
PetlUon fDr Temporary RestraIning Orderllnjutlctlon and Othcr:Ordcrs· 

i. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

S 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

28 

... ,. 

; . . 
l 
; 

, ! , 
! ' 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws ofthe,)1tal5 of ,california that the 
~Ue' 

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April \~, 2016, at saC'l ' 'e~to, Cali~omia. ," , 

(-,,-,~' . -..,,?. , /~ . 

Jonec F I hseca'. : :. 

....... ' . : : ", .. . ". 
, .. . 

..... 
..... 

.. . .. ". 

" , 

... ...... " 

: .. : ' 

. , 

-,- , , III . " 
Petition for Temporary Reatralnlng Order/Injunction and ~thel"" Orders 

. , Iii " " 
I 

t"". 1.11.111 1.1 , 1.1 

. 
" 

• , 
,' , 
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u .. , , .. , ""u I e I O'J:J:l".Oeptl r ~menl;.:I" .... UUtlIU1U 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Joncc Fonseca 
Mother of Israel Stinson 
Add",,, 

Telephone withheld for privacy but 
provided to Court and Respondent 

, I • . ' , 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA ' 

l ' 
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF PLACER 

i ' 
UNLlMlTED CIVIL JURISDIC'I;l0t ' " " ' 

Israel Stinson,. minor, by Jon •• Fans ... his ' Cas. No, S C1 0 037 () 7 3 
mother. [pROPOSED] OI!.DER OR TEMPORARY 

Petitioner, 

v. 

UC Davis Children's Hospital; Kaiser 
Pennanente Roseville Medical Center­
Women and Children's Center. 

RESTRAINING ORDER/INJUNCTION: ' 
REQUEST FOR ORDER OF INDENDENT 
NEUROLOGICM,. EXAM; REQUEST OF 
ORDER TO MAlNTIN LEVEL OF 
MEDICAL CARE 

'.,. i '. ,. 

i : .. . .j' 

Respondent. 17 

1811---------------------~ 

, ' .,. 
RECE VIED 

APR 1 2016 
Superlo( Cour of California 

. . . . County 0 Placer 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

! . . . .. 

" " 
, 

- ' -

The V.rified Peti.tio~ of Jon .. Fonseca for • temporarf;, fe'irj):~nr~~~r ;~e ;l>~f~f~ th. 

Court upon ex-parte apphcauon at In Department _ 9fthe' PI.cerCo~ty Supenor 
; .. .' . ,. , i · .\ . . . 

Court, the Hon. presiding. ; '.' . ; /,: .~ ! ••. ; 

Ii· . ' . , 
After considering the Petition tho Court find. that: 

. ··i 

1) There is a basis in law and in fact for the issuance of a temporary restraiqirig order; .. 

2) Failure to grant the petition will potentiaily result in ~plable h~ to ~e patien; : 
,1 , , , 

Israel Stinson ~d this Order is necessruy ~til such time rthe:pe~ti~n~,, ~, Obtel~ , " 

. ' .. 

, - I - , , j ", , 
Order on Petition rorTemporary Reltralnlng Order/lnJulh~tloD 'ti,tl 'Othir Ordus , 'j , " " . :. " : , ; . : 

I 
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. .. -- . ~ ._ ... .......... -. "" .... .. ~ .. .. 

, 
" .'. ; .... . '.' '. 

her son's medit;al rr;cords and obtain an independent me ica1 examinatlorl 'and the 

I'" . UUl:IfU IU 

i 

" 

I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

court, if needed, can hold further evidentiary hearing. " , . . .,:, ,. .. , .:, .. ' ' . .:i" 

THEREFORE IT IS ORDERED THAT: 

The temporary restraining order is hereby granted preclud.in tHe respondent from 
, 

removing Israel Stinson from the ventilator or ending any of the cu t treatment and support 

8 provided by Respondent and that Respondent shall continue to treat srael Stinson in such ~ 

9 

10 

II 

12 , 

.' .:. ' . .: " 

manner so as to optimize his physical health and provide optimum ndilions for further 
.. ' . . . 

'. : . :1 , '; ••• , ;, . '.;. '. ' : . • ' . 

independent neW'Ological examination. 

13 This Temporary Restraining Oder Orders the following: 

14 I) Respondents are restrained from removing Israel Stinson om respiratory support, or 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

". 
removing or withholding medical treatm~nt be Issued; 

, ,,.:' .. !:. ;. ' . ' . . ; .. -:. 
2) , Respondents are to continue to provide Israel Stinson Ire tmen! to maintain her 

, . : .. '., .' . ' ,; " " '.:. .' 
optimum physical health and in such a manner so as to not interfere ·th the neUrological testing 

" .' . . ' . ' .... 
(such as the tlse of sedatives or paralytics in such a manner and/.or at uch ~me .that "th~y m~y 

20 interfere with the accuracy of the results). " ' ... , 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

3) That Petitioner is entitled to an independent neurologicale amination, with the 

assistance of Kaiser Permanente'Roseville Medical Center's diagnos c ~uipni.ent and' . ' 
" . ",' " p . 

technicians necessary to carry out the standard neurologic brain d~. , ,~x~~~tion with a repeat 

EEG and a Cerebral Blood Flow Study. 
" . : .::.,"'. : .1 :" ', !: . . ,: " 

4) That Petitioner immediately serve a copy ofits Petition an this Order upon tho Chief . ... . '. ' 

" ',. :> .. : : '. :' ~ '" ... : .: 
Medical Officer andlor Legal Department 

I I .', . .. :.i. " '. : i,,: .: ( : .. :. .," 

,·2· 
Order on PetitIon (or Temporal')' Rutralnina Orderflnjunction nd·.9 ·thlcr Orden 

: ..... • .. ! . 

I 
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..... U ' U/U I U 

I 5) That the matter is set for further hearing at __ o'clock .m.ip.m. on the ~ day of 

l II __ ~' 2016 in Dept. of the Placer County Superior Court r 'StiltiJ, Cooference and, i 
- , " 1 " ", 

3 necessary, setting conference where th~ schedule for discovery an~ further hearing upon the 
4 

5 

6 

matter, if any. will be set. 

7 Dated: April ~ 2016 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

l4 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. , 
, ' 

I. 
I 

Hon. 
Jddge 0 the Superior Court 

I : •. : ; : ,' ; '" 

'" ' . 0.;. 'I' . 
. " ' .! 
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·ROSEVILLE, CALIFORNIA

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · APRIL 15, 2016

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·---o0o---

·4· · · · · · The matter of ISRAEL STINSON, Plaintiff, versus

·5· ·U.C. DAVIS CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL, Defendant, Case No.

·6· ·S-CV-0037673, came regularly this day before the

·7· ·HONORABLE MICHAEL W. JONES, Judge of the Superior Court

·8· ·of the State of California, in and for the County of

·9· ·Placer, Department Number 43 thereof.

10· · · · · · The Plaintiff was represented by ALEXANDRA

11· ·SNYDER, Attorney at Law.

12· · · · · · The Defendant was represented by DREXWELL JONES,

13· ·Attorney at Law.

14· · · · · · The following proceedings were had, to wit:

15· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·---o0o---

16· · · · · · THE COURT:· Let's call the matter of Israel

17· ·Stinson.· And the caption I have is versus U.C. Davis

18· ·Children's Hospital, et al.· "Et al" being Kaiser

19· ·Permanente Roseville Medical Center, Women's Children

20· ·Center.

21· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Good morning, Your Honor.· Drexwell

22· ·Jones for Kaiser Foundation Hospital.· I have with me

23· ·Dr. --

24· · · · · · DR. MYETTE:· Michael Myette, M-y-e-t-t-e, and

25· ·I'm the attending physician of record.
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·1· · · · · · THE COURT:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Alexandra Snyder for Jonee Fonseca.

·3· ·And this is Jonee Fonseca, Israel Stinson's mother.

·4· · · · · · THE COURT:· Good morning, folks.· Make yourself

·5· ·comfortable.

·6· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.· Apparently you folks

·8· ·have received an ex parte -- order on an ex parte

·9· ·application for a temporary restraining order, and the

10· ·matter was sent here this morning for further proceedings

11· ·on this matter.

12· · · · · · And neither one of you have requested or brought

13· ·with you a court reporter?

14· · · · · · MR. JONES:· No.

15· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· No.

16· · · · · · THE COURT:· The Court is going to have Madam

17· ·Reporter here report the proceedings for the Court's

18· ·purposes.

19· · · · · · All right, folks.· Before we start, I'm just

20· ·going to make one disclosure, and that's myself, like

21· ·many employees of government entities and agencies, I'm a

22· ·member of Kaiser and receive my medical services from

23· ·there; as well when I was in private practice and the

24· ·senior partner of my firm, that was the health care

25· ·provider provided to my employees.· It has no effect in
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·1· ·my opinion on anything.· That's why I'm continuing with

·2· ·this matter, but I make that disclosure to each side for

·3· ·you to address it accordingly if you wish to.· All right.

·4· · · · · · Let's see.· Judge Pineschi then signed this

·5· ·order yesterday.· And by that, I'm referring to the order

·6· ·on the ex parte application for the temporary restraining

·7· ·order, having set the matter here this morning.

·8· · · · · · Let me start with a couple of questions I have

·9· ·in reviewing the limited information that I have.· And

10· ·one of the first questions that I have is whether there

11· ·is another parent; what is the status of that parent?

12· ·Let's start with those couple of questions first.

13· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes, Your Honor.· There is another

14· ·parent.· The father is Nathaniel Stinson.· He is -- he is

15· ·actually outside calling another -- an outside physician,

16· ·but he is here in the building.

17· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· By him being here, then, he

18· ·is aware and has received notice of these proceedings for

19· ·today?

20· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes.· Yes, he has.

21· · · · · · THE COURT:· Do you know -- is he --

22· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· He is here.· There is some concern,

23· ·too, that their son not be left unattended.· So he's, I

24· ·think, working out who's going to be in the hospital

25· ·with -- with Israel at this time while his parents are
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·1· ·here in court.

·2· · · · · · If you would like him to come in, we can -- I

·3· ·think we can have him come in.

·4· · · · · · THE COURT:· That's exactly where I'm going.

·5· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes.· So let's do that.

·6· · · · · · THE COURT:· Hold on.· Let's do it one at a time.

·7· · · · · · If he is present, I want him to be here in the

·8· ·courtroom as well because I -- I need to have a few

·9· ·questions for him as well.· So, please.· We'll adjourn

10· ·for a moment to get him.

11· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · (Brief recess.)

13· · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.· Ms. Fonseca has rejoined

14· ·us.

15· · · · · · And you are Mr. Nathaniel Stinson, sir?

16· · · · · · MR. STINSON:· Yes.

17· · · · · · THE COURT:· Good morning, sir.

18· · · · · · MR. STINSON:· Good morning.

19· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Now, we have both parents

20· ·present.

21· · · · · · You are, indeed, the father of Israel Stinson?

22· · · · · · MR. STINSON:· I am.

23· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · All right.· So we are on, at this time, on the

25· ·application for the temporary restraining order, the
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·1· ·hearing being set today.

·2· · · · · · So, Ms. Snyder, where are we with this

·3· ·proceeding?

·4· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· So, as you mentioned, we -- we have

·5· ·a temporary restraining order that was in place through

·6· ·this hearing this morning.· And at this time, we are

·7· ·requesting that that order, plus nutrition, be extended

·8· ·for two weeks so that Israel's parents can find an

·9· ·outside doctor to do another evaluation and possibly

10· ·transfer him to another facility.· So we worked very hard

11· ·last night to find another doctor who said he would

12· ·review Israel's records.· He is not in the state, and he

13· ·is actually currently on a trip in St. Louis.· But he

14· ·said he would review the records and then refer the case

15· ·to a California doctor who could examine Israel in

16· ·person.

17· · · · · · Essentially we're asking for what the California

18· ·Health and Safety Code provides in Section 7181 in the

19· ·form of an independent confirmation by another physician.

20· · · · · · THE COURT:· And the basis for -- before I hear a

21· ·response from Mr. Jones on behalf of Kaiser, the basis

22· ·for the request to include at this time nutrition and

23· ·also the basis for the extension for two weeks, if you

24· ·could address both of those.

25· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes.· So the nutrition was
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·1· ·recommended by the doctor that we consulted with.· He

·2· ·wanted to make sure that -- that as much treatment as

·3· ·possible was provided, including basic nutrition so that

·4· ·essentially the child wasn't starved over the next period

·5· ·of time.

·6· · · · · · And the two-week time frame --

·7· · · · · · THE COURT:· Let's stick with the nutrition for a

·8· ·moment.

·9· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I'm sorry.

10· · · · · · THE COURT:· First of all, the doctor, is this a

11· ·neurosurgeon?· A pediatric?

12· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· He is a pediatric neurologist.

13· · · · · · THE COURT:· But not from this state?

14· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· No.· But he does consult with

15· ·physicians from the state and would be able to refer

16· ·a -- refer the parents to a California physician.

17· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· And with respect to

18· ·nutrition, that's, as you can imagine, very broad.

19· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes.· And I am not --

20· ·unfortunately, I am not a physician so --

21· · · · · · THE COURT:· But you spoke to one.

22· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I did.· I did.· And he -- I mean,

23· ·he said "nutrition" but did not go into specifics.· I am

24· ·sure we can have him provide specifics.· He did -- he did

25· ·provide us with a medical directive.· I can provide you a
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·1· ·copy, if you'd like.· But he would like to go with

·2· ·Israel's chart.

·3· · · · · · THE COURT:· Have you shown that to Mr. Jones?

·4· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I have not.

·5· · · · · · (The Court and Madam Clerk confer sotto voce.)

·6· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Anything further on the

·7· ·nutrition aspect?

·8· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· No.· But, again, we -- I'm sure we

·9· ·can get specifics from -- from the doctor who provided us

10· ·with the medical directive.

11· · · · · · THE COURT:· Well, assume if I were to give some

12· ·period of time of extension for the temporary restraining

13· ·order.· Wouldn't one of the questions that would be asked

14· ·by Kaiser be some sort of directive in terms of what does

15· ·nutrition mean?

16· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Yes, and we did -- we did

17· ·discuss -- spent quite a bit of time discussing this

18· ·yesterday afternoon in terms of the specifics, and I

19· ·did -- again, I contacted Dr. Byrne about that.· So, yes,

20· ·absolutely.· There would be questions, and we can provide

21· ·those answers.· We just need a longer consult with the

22· ·doctor.

23· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Let's go to that, then.

24· ·Let's turn to the two weeks.

25· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Okay.· So the two-week period of

Case 2:16-cv-00889-KJM-EFB   Document 14-4   Filed 05/01/16   Page 11 of 45

http://www.moadeporeporters.com/


·1· ·time, I believe, would be sufficient to allow our

·2· ·out-of-state doctor to review Israel's records, provide a

·3· ·referral to a California physician, allow time for that

·4· ·physician to come to Roseville to examine Israel, and

·5· ·then also allow time for -- to make arrangements for

·6· ·another facility.

·7· · · · · · We started that process yesterday evening but

·8· ·it's -- it's difficult.· So we have found a potential

·9· ·location for him that's out of state.· His parents would

10· ·prefer not to go out of state.· They have another child.

11· ·They have a lot of family here.· And right now they

12· ·really need that support from their family.

13· · · · · · So we are hoping to find a facility, a suitable

14· ·facility in California, but that may take a little bit of

15· ·time.· Those beds are not always immediately available.

16· · · · · · THE COURT:· I understand.· All right.· Thank

17· ·you.

18· · · · · · Mr. Jones, maybe I should have started with --

19· ·if there's even any objection.· I assumed by virtue of

20· ·the fact that you appeared yesterday on the restraining

21· ·order and voiced concerns that you have some position at

22· ·least to the request now to continue the temporary

23· ·restraining order and to include a nutrition aspect and

24· ·also for the extension for a two-week period of time.

25· · · · · · So if you could address those two issues and any
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·1· ·others you wish to at this time.

·2· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Yes, Your Honor.· First, I just want

·3· ·to kind of point out that this case is not a persistent

·4· ·vegetative case -- persistent vegetative state case where

·5· ·there's a question about the functioning of the body.

·6· · · · · · Yesterday, Israel was declared to be dead

·7· ·pursuant to California law.

·8· · · · · · And, you know, no -- you know, through no fault

·9· ·of the petitioner, there are facts missing from the

10· ·petition.· And I think it might be beneficial for the

11· ·Court to hear from a doctor the clinical course and the

12· ·current status of Israel.· Because it seems like, looking

13· ·at the document counsel presented for the medical

14· ·directive, it seems to kind of be missing the point that

15· ·the -- under the law, the examinations to determine brain

16· ·dead have been done.

17· · · · · · Kaiser was the independent facility that Israel

18· ·was transferred to to make that determination.· U.C.

19· ·Davis, where he was at previously, did the first

20· ·examination for brain death and found the test to be

21· ·consistent with brain dead.

22· · · · · · The parents objected to U.C. Davis performing

23· ·that test and had him transferred to Kaiser.· Then when

24· ·Israel gets to Kaiser, Kaiser agrees to perform --

25· ·basically, he was brought to Kaiser for this specific
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·1· ·purpose of determining brain death.

·2· · · · · · Another test is done, as an independent

·3· ·facility.· And it confirms, in fact, that Israel is dead.

·4· · · · · · Another test, a third test, was performed

·5· ·yesterday, evaluation, a neurologic evaluation and apnea

·6· ·test, found that he is brain dead.· He was declared dead

·7· ·yesterday.

·8· · · · · · There's been no challenge to the accuracy or

·9· ·credibility of the testing that's been done.· There is

10· ·nothing that suggests that there should be a -- what

11· ·amounts to a fifth examination into whether or not Israel

12· ·is dead because he, in fact, is.

13· · · · · · So I kind of just want to go back -- and maybe

14· ·if we had a rundown of sort of the clinical course from

15· ·the doctor, it might frame things a little bit different

16· ·than they are in the petition.· And, again, I'm not

17· ·saying that anyone is trying to be inaccurate in the

18· ·petition, but it was -- you know, the information therein

19· ·was provided by a lay account.· And there's some

20· ·information that might be beneficial to the Court if the

21· ·Court wouldn't mind hearing from a doctor.

22· · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.· I'll hear from

23· ·Dr. Myette too at this point to at least provide the

24· ·Court with more information in terms of the status of

25· ·where we are with the various petitions.
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·1· · · · · · So, Dr. Myette, I'm going to ask that you please

·2· ·stand, sir, and be sworn.

·3· · · · · · (Whereupon the witness was sworn.)

·4· · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I do.

·5· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Please state your full name for the

·6· ·record.

·7· · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Michael Steven Myette.

·8· · · · · · THE CLERK:· Please be seated.

·9· · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.· You can just remain

10· ·there for this purpose, sir.

11· · · · · · Go ahead

12· · · · · · · · · · · DIRECT EXAMINATION

13· ·BY MR. JONES:

14· ·Q.· · · ·Doctor, first off, what is your title?

15· ·A.· · · ·I am a pediatric intensivist, and I'm

16· ·board-certified in pediatrics and in pediatric critical

17· ·care medicine.· And I'm the medical director for the

18· ·pediatric ICU at Kaiser Permanente in Roseville.

19· ·Q.· · · ·And how long have you practiced medicine?

20· ·A.· · · ·I have -- I have worked at Kaiser for -- it will

21· ·be 11 years this July.· Prior to that, I did my critical

22· ·care in fellowship at U.C. San Francisco.· And prior to

23· ·that, I did a pediatric residency at U.C. Davis.

24· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Your Honor, I'd like to qualify this

25· ·witness as an expert witness as well as a treating

Case 2:16-cv-00889-KJM-EFB   Document 14-4   Filed 05/01/16   Page 15 of 45

http://www.moadeporeporters.com/


·1· ·physician.

·2· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Excuse me.· I'm sorry, Your Honor.

·3· ·But I was under the -- we were under the understanding

·4· ·that we would not be calling witnesses, specifically

·5· ·medical witnesses, because of the short time frame, that

·6· ·there would be no time for us to call a witness.

·7· · · · · · In fact, Kaiser asked us if we would call a

·8· ·medical witness, and we said we would not.· And the

·9· ·understanding was that they would not either because

10· ·their witness is ten minutes from here and ours is 2,000

11· ·miles from here.· So -- and we had 15 hours to prepare

12· ·for this hearing this morning.

13· · · · · · THE COURT:· I understand.

14· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Okay.

15· · · · · · THE COURT:· What I'm doing at this point in time

16· ·is Kaiser wants to present some further information for

17· ·the Court on these issues.· And in terms of me receiving

18· ·that information, since we have the doctor here, I might

19· ·as well receive it in a proper fashion under oath.

20· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Okay.

21· · · · · · THE COURT:· Would you agree with that, that if

22· ·he is going to say something, it might as well be --

23· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I do agree with that, yes.

24· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Thank you.· Go ahead, sir.

25· ·BY MR. JONES:
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·1· ·Q.· · · ·And have you been involved with the care of

·2· ·Israel Stinson?

·3· ·A.· · · ·Yes.· I received him in transfer from U.C. Davis

·4· ·Medical Center on April 12th and cared for him through

·5· ·yesterday.· I -- I documented his time of death yesterday

·6· ·at 12:00 noon.

·7· ·Q.· · · ·Have you had an opportunity to review the

·8· ·medical records from U.C. Davis?

·9· ·A.· · · ·Yeah.· I -- I extensively reviewed the medical

10· ·records at U.C. Davis, the course of his care there,

11· ·which I can summarize, if you want me to.

12· · · · · · THE COURT:· That's okay.

13· ·BY MR. JONES:

14· ·Q.· · · ·Can you summarize the care.

15· ·A.· · · ·Okay.· Israel presented with a condition called

16· ·status asthmaticus to an outside hospital in the Mercy

17· ·system.

18· · · · · · The emergency physicians treating him were

19· ·concerned at the severity of his asthma.· He was

20· ·initially treated with medicines to take care of that.

21· ·Ultimately, it was determined that he required assistance

22· ·with a ventilator.

23· · · · · · THE COURT:· How old is Israel?

24· · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Israel is a 30-month-old boy.· He

25· ·is 2 1/2 years old.
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·1· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · THE WITNESS:· So he had an intratracheal tube

·3· ·placed in his trachea and was put on a ventilator.· This

·4· ·intervention placed the child beyond the scope of care of

·5· ·the facility in the Mercy system.· So they contacted U.C.

·6· ·Davis Medical Center who agreed to accept the patient in

·7· ·transfer.

·8· ·BY MR. JONES:

·9· ·Q.· · · ·And what date was that, Doctor?

10· ·A.· · · ·April 1st.

11· ·Q.· · · ·And the transfer was April 2nd?

12· ·A.· · · ·The transfer was April 1st.

13· ·Q.· · · ·Okay.

14· ·A.· · · ·The patient was cared for overnight in the

15· ·pediatric ICU at U.C. Davis Medical Center.

16· · · · · · On the 2nd of April, the physicians determined

17· ·that he had improved and the intratracheal tube,

18· ·breathing tube, was removed.

19· · · · · · He was continued to be treated for his asthma at

20· ·that point with Albuterol and other medications.

21· · · · · · A few hours after excavation, he began to

22· ·develop a very acute respiratory distress.· The doctors

23· ·attempted to treat that with rescue medications, but he

24· ·developed a condition called a bronchospasm where his

25· ·airway squeezes down so tight that air can't pass through
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·1· ·it.

·2· · · · · · The U.C. Davis doctors did multiple rescue

·3· ·attempts including replacing the intratracheal -- the

·4· ·breathing tube.

·5· · · · · · Even with the intratracheal breathing tube in

·6· ·place, they could not adequately force air into the

·7· ·portion of his lung where oxygen is exchanged.

·8· · · · · · During this episode, Israel's heart stopped.· He

·9· ·was resuscitated with cardiopulmonary resuscitation,

10· ·chest compressions, and continued attempts to force air

11· ·into his lungs through the intratracheal tube.

12· ·Q.· · · ·For how long?

13· ·A.· · · ·40 minutes this went on.

14· · · · · · I spoke directly with one of the physicians of

15· ·record who told me that they had a terrible time trying

16· ·to get air in his lungs.

17· · · · · · As hard as they pushed, they could not seem to

18· ·bypass this -- the spastic airway and get air into the

19· ·portion of his lung where it would be life sustaining.

20· · · · · · After 40 minutes of cardiopulmonary

21· ·resuscitation, he was cannulated for a machine called

22· ·ECMO.· It's spelled E-C-M-O.· It is a machine.· It stands

23· ·for Extracorporeal Membrane Oxygenation.

24· · · · · · ECMO is a machine that is analogous to a

25· ·heart-lung bypass machine when somebody is getting heart
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·1· ·surgery.· But unlike that machine, it is used in an

·2· ·intensive care unit to act in lieu of a heart and lungs

·3· ·when the heart and lungs aren't functional but the

·4· ·physicians believe that the condition is reversible.

·5· · · · · · He remained on the ECMO circuit for four days at

·6· ·U.C. Davis Medical Center.

·7· · · · · · The asthma and the subsequent cardiac arrest

·8· ·were, in fact, reversible.· And his heart functioned --

·9· ·started to function on its own after -- after a time as

10· ·did the -- the bronchospasm in his lungs improved also

11· ·over time with medication.

12· · · · · · He was decannulated, which is to say taken off

13· ·of the ECMO circuit on April 6th.

14· · · · · · On April 7th, he had a procedure, a nuclear

15· ·medicine procedure at U.C. Davis, called radionuclide.

16· ·It's spelled r-a-d-i-o-n-u-c-l-i-d-e, I believe.

17· · · · · · Radionuclide scan, which is a scan which

18· ·measures uptake of oxygen and nutrients, glucose and

19· ·such, into the brain.· That is often used as an ancillary

20· ·test.· It is not a test that you can use to determine

21· ·brain death in and of itself.· It doesn't substitute for

22· ·a brain death exam.· But in cases where a complete brain

23· ·death exam is not -- is not able to be done, it can be an

24· ·ancillary piece of information.· That's why I bring it up

25· ·because it's supporting information.
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·1· · · · · · The radionuclide scan was read by a radiologist

·2· ·and confirmed as showing no -- no uptake of oxygen or

·3· ·nutrients by Israel's brain.

·4· · · · · · On the 8th of April, one of the U.C. Davis

·5· ·Medical Center pediatric intensivists, somebody who is

·6· ·trained in the same manner and board-certified in the

·7· ·same manner that I am, performed an initial neuro exam

·8· ·attempting to see if there is any evidence of brain

·9· ·function.

10· · · · · · That exam, including an apnea test, suggested

11· ·that there was -- that there was no -- no brain activity.

12· ·It was consistent with brain dead -- brain death.

13· ·Q.· · · ·What's an apnea test?

14· ·A.· · · ·An apnea test is a test whereby you take a

15· ·patient off of a ventilator.· You get them

16· ·physiologically into a -- into a normal state as

17· ·possible, normal oxygen in their blood, normal CO2 in

18· ·their blood.

19· · · · · · And you cease blowing air into their lungs.· You

20· ·place them on ambient, 100 percent oxygen, so that they

21· ·are still able to deliver oxygen to their body during

22· ·this test.

23· · · · · · But the human body doesn't -- doesn't use oxygen

24· ·or lack of oxygen to drive our desire to breathe.· Our

25· ·desire to breathe is driven by carbon dioxide in the
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·1· ·blood.

·2· · · · · · So this test is a test whereby we -- without

·3· ·letting a patient become dangerously deoxygenated, we

·4· ·allow the carbon dioxide to increase to a point where the

·5· ·portion of their brain that regulates carbon dioxide and

·6· ·tells the body to take a breath will respond.· We

·7· ·actually go way beyond that.

·8· · · · · · The specifics of that test are available in the

·9· ·paper, and I can -- I can go into more detail if you

10· ·want.

11· · · · · · But the apnea test went on for -- I don't

12· ·remember exactly how long she documented, but I think it

13· ·was somewhere in the neighborhood of six to eight

14· ·minutes, which is fairly typical for an apnea test.

15· · · · · · The recommendations, as put forth by the

16· ·American Academy of Pediatrics, the Society of Child

17· ·Neurology, and the Society of Critical Care Medicine, who

18· ·have issued a joint statement on how to go about these

19· ·things states that you need to have normal CO2 at the

20· ·beginning of the test.· And you need to have a jump of at

21· ·least 20 millimeters of mercury during the course of the

22· ·test for the test to be valid.

23· · · · · · The test was done -- was documented blood gasses

24· ·before and after the apnea, the period of nonbreathing,

25· ·were done and confirmed that there was an adequate reason
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·1· ·in Israel's CO2 that should have triggered his body to

·2· ·take a breath if that portion of his brain that -- that

·3· ·regulates when to take a breath was -- was functional.

·4· · · · · · On the 8th, the clinical neuro exams were

·5· ·conducted.

·6· · · · · · It is customary and it is recommended

·7· ·somebody -- somebody that is Israel's age you have to

·8· ·wait a minimum of 12 hours in between two separate exams

·9· ·of this nature.

10· · · · · · The first exam establishes that there is no

11· ·function.· The second exam is supposed to confirm that

12· ·whatever caused the first exam results to be what they

13· ·are is -- was not, in fact, reversible.

14· · · · · · In terms of Israel, he has not received any

15· ·medications for pain or sedation since April 2nd.

16· · · · · · He has not received any -- anything that would

17· ·depress brain function since April 2nd.

18· ·Q.· · · ·Was there a second test conducted at U.C.

19· ·Davis?

20· ·A.· · · ·There was not a second test done at U.C. Davis.

21· ·The family -- well, the family requested some scans be

22· ·done.

23· · · · · · They asked for -- on the 9th or 10th -- I don't

24· ·remember which day.· But on the 9th or 10th, they

25· ·requested a CT scan of the head be done and an MRI of the
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·1· ·brain be done.

·2· · · · · · U.C. Davis complied with this request and

·3· ·actually did both scans.· The CT scan of the brain, which

·4· ·they sent to us also with his medical records, was read

·5· ·as showing diffused brain swelling, effacement of the

·6· ·basal cisterns, and herniation of the brain stem out the

·7· ·foramen magnum.

·8· · · · · · The foramen magnum is the hole at the base of

·9· ·the skull where the spinal cord comes out.· And if the

10· ·brain swells enough, then a portion of the brain, just by

11· ·the pressure from all that swelling, can be forced down

12· ·through that hole.

13· · · · · · While that is not part of a brain death exam,

14· ·per se, that is an unsurvivable event.

15· ·Q.· · · ·Irreversible?

16· ·A.· · · ·Irreversible.

17· ·Q.· · · ·Then what happened?

18· ·A.· · · ·The MRI also confirmed severe global injury to

19· ·the brain and also confirmed the transforaminal, across

20· ·the foramen herniation of brain tissue of the brain stem.

21· ·Q.· · · ·Did the parents object to a second test at U.C.

22· ·Davis?

23· ·A.· · · ·The U.C. Davis doctors document that there was

24· ·objection to doing a confirmatory brain death test.

25· · · · · · The family requested that Israel be transferred
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·1· ·to U.C. Davis -- excuse me -- to Children's Hospital and

·2· ·Research Center in Oakland -- or now, I guess, the UCSF

·3· ·Benioff Children's Hospital in Oakland is the current

·4· ·name.

·5· · · · · · The physicians at U.C. -- or at UCSF Benioff

·6· ·Oakland Children's Hospital refused the transfer.· They

·7· ·declined to take the patient in transfer.

·8· · · · · · Then -- I don't know -- the circumstances aren't

·9· ·100 percent clear to me, but I came into the -- into the

10· ·fold when I received a call from our outside services and

11· ·asking me if I would be willing to take -- to take Israel

12· ·in transfer.

13· · · · · · Realizing that this was a difficult and tragic

14· ·set of circumstances and understanding that probably the

15· ·family had mistrust of the physicians at U.C. Davis

16· ·because that's where the initial event, the initial

17· ·cardiopulmonary arrest occurred, was likely to make it

18· ·very difficult for them to accept whatever U.C. Davis was

19· ·going to tell them, I agreed to transfer the patient to

20· ·my intensive care unit and to evaluate him on my own.

21· ·Q.· · · ·For brain death?

22· ·A.· · · ·For brain death, correct.

23· · · · · · Understand that I -- I evaluate a patient not

24· ·looking for brain death, per se, but looking for absence

25· ·of brain death.· It is a vital part of information for me
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·1· ·to be able to figure out what the nature of care I need

·2· ·to deliver to this boy.

·3· · · · · · Had I done my initial exam on him and discovered

·4· ·that there was some activity in his brain, we wouldn't be

·5· ·here.· I'd be -- we'd be -- we would not have declared

·6· ·him dead, and we would be attempting to facilitate

·7· ·whatever recovery he would have been capable of.

·8· ·Q.· · · ·When was he transferred to Kaiser?

·9· ·A.· · · ·He was transferred to Kaiser on April 12th.· He

10· ·arrived in the early afternoon.

11· ·Q.· · · ·When was -- when was the first test conducted?

12· ·A.· · · ·The first test done at Kaiser -- I did that

13· ·test, but it wasn't done until about 11:00 o'clock p.m.

14· ·that night.

15· · · · · · The delay was that, as I had mentioned earlier,

16· ·a patient has to be in a normal physiologic state for a

17· ·brain death exam to be valid.

18· · · · · · And Israel is unstable.· The portions of his

19· ·brain that autoregulate all the things that we take for

20· ·granted, his brain is not doing that.

21· · · · · · So illustration:· When he came to me, his body

22· ·temperature was 33 degrees centigrade.· Normal body

23· ·temperature is 37 degrees centigrade.· He doesn't

24· ·regulate his body temperature.· If he gets cold, he

25· ·doesn't shiver.· If he gets cold, his body won't alter
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·1· ·its metabolic rate to increase heat production.

·2· · · · · · And so he is not -- if left alone, he will drift

·3· ·to ambient temperature, room temperature.

·4· · · · · · So when he got there, he had dropped from 36 to

·5· ·37 degrees at U.C. Davis.· The transfer, being in the

·6· ·ambulance and being in a -- in that environment was

·7· ·enough to drop his temperature four degrees centigrade.

·8· · · · · · So I had to spend several hours gently warming

·9· ·his body back up, which we instituted shortly after

10· ·arrival.· This is not something you want to do quickly

11· ·because you can overshoot.· And somebody who has a brain

12· ·injury who gets a fever is likely to have a worsening of

13· ·that brain injury.· So we have to be very careful not to

14· ·cause a fever.

15· · · · · · So at that point, I began gentle warming.

16· ·Another problem that had occurred when he arrived was

17· ·that -- our pituitary gland in our brain regulates our

18· ·water and salt balance in our body.· To simplify, sodium

19· ·and free water.

20· · · · · · A hormone called vasopressin secreted by the

21· ·pituitary gland keeps all of us in -- in normalcy for

22· ·water and sodium.· Well, his brain doesn't -- isn't doing

23· ·that now.· His pituitary gland is not functioning.· So he

24· ·was placed on an infusion of -- of manufactured -- of

25· ·pharmaceutical vasopressin, which we have.· And that is a
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·1· ·hormone that the body has this variable sensitivity to.

·2· ·And so you have to monitor him very closely.

·3· · · · · · When he had his brain death exam at U.C. Davis,

·4· ·his sodium was in the normal range.· But by virtue of

·5· ·time, when he got to me, his sodium level was elevated,

·6· ·also elevated to a point at which I couldn't have done a

·7· ·valid brain death exam.· So I had to -- I had to manage

·8· ·that level of sodium by altering the level of vasopressin

·9· ·I was infusing into his body to get his sodium into a

10· ·physiologic range.

11· ·Q.· · · ·Doctor, let me just ask this:· Is the function

12· ·of those organs not occurring because the brain is just

13· ·not sending any signals of how organs have to operate?

14· ·A.· · · ·That's correct.· The kidneys regulate sodium and

15· ·water based on signals they receive from the brain.

16· · · · · · So while -- while Israel's kidneys in and of

17· ·themselves are fine, they are not receiving the signals

18· ·to do their job.

19· · · · · · So that was the problem.· He has wild

20· ·fluctuations in his level of free water in his body,

21· ·which can drive his sodium dangerously low or if we take

22· ·away -- if we don't supplement that hormone, then he will

23· ·pee out -- for lack of a better word, will urinate all

24· ·the free water in his body and will go into

25· ·cardiovascular collapse and die, and we will see that --
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·1· ·we would see that based on his sodium drifting up into

·2· ·levels that are not physiologic.

·3· ·Q.· · · ·So what test did you perform on the 12th?

·4· ·A.· · · ·So after getting his body warmed up to

·5· ·physiologic temperature, between 36 and 37 degrees

·6· ·centigrade, and after readjusting his vasopressin

·7· ·infusion to make sure that his sodium was between 130 and

·8· ·145, I achieved that physiologic state at about 11:00

·9· ·o'clock p.m., and then I performed a comprehensive

10· ·neurologic exam looking for evidence of brain function.

11· · · · · · I can go into the specifics of that test, if you

12· ·want.

13· ·Q.· · · ·What were the results of the test?

14· ·A.· · · ·The results of my tests were consistent with no

15· ·brain function.· There was no evidence of his brain

16· ·receiving any signals from his body, nor was there any

17· ·evidence that his brain was regulating any organs in his

18· ·body.

19· ·Q.· · · ·And you performed an apnea test as well?

20· ·A.· · · ·Correct.· My apnea test lasted for seven and a

21· ·half minutes with Israel on 100 percent oxygen.· And his

22· ·carbon dioxide in his blood at the beginning of the test

23· ·was in the normal range, between 35 and 45.· And at the

24· ·end of the test, his carbon dioxide was 85.· So there was

25· ·a significant increase in that -- a level of increase
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·1· ·that would, in anybody with any function of their brain

·2· ·stem, cause them to draw a breath.· And we -- we had a

·3· ·monitor on his intratracheal tube looking for any CO2,

·4· ·any exhale or there were -- there were sensors on his

·5· ·body sensing any inhale of breath.

·6· ·Q.· · · ·Did you also repeat that test yesterday?

·7· ·A.· · · ·Yes.· So I did not do -- I want to be clear, I

·8· ·didn't do the confirmatory brain death exam.· The

·9· ·recommendations by National is for two separate

10· ·physicians to do the two different exams so that you have

11· ·a fresh set of eyes.

12· · · · · · And one of my colleagues, Dr. Masselink, spelled

13· ·M-a-s-s-e-l-i-n-k, who is a board-certified pediatric

14· ·neurologist performed the confirmatory neurologic test

15· ·yesterday at 11:00 o'clock in the morning.· That was a

16· ·full 36 hours after the first test.

17· · · · · · In the room accompanying and witnessing that

18· ·test with him was Israel's great aunt and one of his

19· ·grandmothers.· And also Dr. Shelly Garone, who is one

20· ·of -- one of my bosses -- one of the -- they're called at

21· ·Kaiser -- they're called APIC.· It stands for Associate

22· ·Physician In Chief.· And she -- she was also present for

23· ·that.

24· ·Q.· · · ·What were the results of the tests?

25· ·A.· · · ·The results of that test, as documented by
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·1· ·Dr. Masselink, were that there was no -- no evidence of

·2· ·any brain function, that the exam was consistent with

·3· ·brain death.

·4· ·Q.· · · ·And was there a declaration of death made?

·5· ·A.· · · ·Yeah.· Well, let me add one more thing.

·6· · · · · · A second apnea test was done as is -- as is in

·7· ·the recommendations put forth by the National Societies,

·8· ·as I previously mentioned.

·9· · · · · · So I did a second apnea test.· The rules of

10· ·brain death say that the same physician can do both apnea

11· ·tests because it's appropriate that either a pediatric

12· ·critical care doctor or a pediatric anesthesiologist,

13· ·somebody with advanced airway skills, perform the apnea

14· ·test.· That's the one part of the exam that is beyond the

15· ·scope of a pediatric neurologist.

16· · · · · · So after Dr. Masselink completed his exam, the

17· ·final piece was a confirmatory apnea test, and I did a

18· ·confirmatory apnea test.· This time I actually let it go

19· ·for a full nine minutes, waiting to see if Israel would

20· ·[Witness makes a descriptive sound] -- would draw a

21· ·breath.

22· · · · · · And after nine minutes, and CO2 that went above

23· ·90, he did not draw a breath.

24· · · · · · At that point, I terminated the apnea test, and

25· ·it met requirements for a valid test.
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·1· ·Q.· · · ·And at that point --

·2· ·A.· · · ·At that point, I documented -- I wrote a death

·3· ·note and documented Israel's time of death at 12:00 noon,

·4· ·yesterday.

·5· ·Q.· · · ·How difficult is it to maintain, essentially,

·6· ·the body -- now that there's been a declaration of death,

·7· ·what efforts are required in order to keep Israel in the

·8· ·condition that he currently is, which I understand is not

·9· ·very stable?

10· ·A.· · · ·Yeah.· That's -- that's a good question.  I

11· ·mentioned earlier that the brain sends the signals that

12· ·regulate our salt and free water.

13· · · · · · And try as we might, doctors are not as good as

14· ·a working brain at doing this.· We're certainly doing our

15· ·best.

16· · · · · · But I can tell you that between Israel's arrival

17· ·on the 12th and when I signed off to my colleague,

18· ·another pediatric intensivist last night at 8:00 o'clock

19· ·p.m., that I did not leave the hospital.· I was always

20· ·either in -- in the ICU, in the room with Israel, or over

21· ·in my office, which is in the same building right around

22· ·the corner.· I took a couple of two- or three-hour naps

23· ·in the sleep room, which is within 30 feet of the

24· ·intensive care unit.

25· · · · · · The reason being that throughout the night, from
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·1· ·the time he arrived until the time I signed him off, I

·2· ·was microadjusting his vasopressin infusion, making sure

·3· ·that his sodium did not drift too high or too low.· I was

·4· ·adjusting another infusion that I hadn't mentioned yet, a

·5· ·medicine called norepinephrine or noradrenaline.· It is a

·6· ·synthetic cousin to our own adrenaline that our body

·7· ·secretes.

·8· · · · · · Israel's body doesn't secrete that anymore.· As

·9· ·a result, his blood pressure without this medicine will

10· ·drift low to the point where he will not perfuse his

11· ·coronary arteries, and his heart will stop.· He is

12· ·absolutely 100 percent dependent on this infusion of

13· ·norepinephrine to keep that heart beating.

14· · · · · · So if you give too much of that medicine, again,

15· ·people have varying sensitivities to it.· It's not a

16· ·simple dose, and you get a blood pressure.· You have to

17· ·see what dose will produce a blood pressure.

18· · · · · · He has an invasive arterial line in his femoral

19· ·artery that gives us a moment-to-moment reading of his

20· ·blood pressure.· And using that catheter and transducing

21· ·that pressure onto a monitor continuously, I adjust the

22· ·norepinephrine.

23· · · · · · He has -- I can't tell you exactly how many

24· ·times, but I can tell you it's more than 20 that I've

25· ·adjusted that medicine.· Okay.· I am trying to keep his
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·1· ·main arterial pressure, which is somewhere between the

·2· ·systolic and diastolic.· I can get more specific than

·3· ·that if you need but that's probably adequate.· I want to

·4· ·keep that main at least 60 and not above 100.

·5· · · · · · Below 60, and I don't adequately perfuse his

·6· ·kidneys or his heart.

·7· · · · · · Above 100, and the pressure in the arteries is

·8· ·high enough that I run the risk of him having a

·9· ·bleeding -- a bleeding episode or a hemorrhage.

10· · · · · · So that moment-to-moment, minute-to-minute, and

11· ·hour-to-hour management of his blood pressure, and that

12· ·moment-to-moment, hour-to-hour management of his salt and

13· ·free water levels in his body are something that requires

14· ·a physician be present virtually all the time.

15· ·Q.· · · ·Are Israel's organs essentially beginning to

16· ·atrophy?· Are they failing?

17· ·A.· · · ·The -- this is what we normally see happen.

18· ·There are exceptions to this.· I think there's a -- Mom

19· ·and Dad mentioned a case where somebody who had seen

20· ·total cease of brain function has continued for a long

21· ·time to have a beating heart.· I don't know the specifics

22· ·of that case.

23· · · · · · But I can tell you in my experience -- I have

24· ·precedent for trying to keep the heart beating after

25· ·somebody has been declared dead.· The specific situation
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·1· ·where we do this is when a family wishes organ donation.

·2· ·Because if the heart keeps beating and keeps delivering

·3· ·oxygen and glucose to the organs that are still

·4· ·functional, then those organs can be transplanted into

·5· ·somebody who needs them.

·6· · · · · · And so in situations where families wish organ

·7· ·donation, often when somebody has been declared brain

·8· ·dead, we, intensivists, as a bridge to get these organs

·9· ·to transplant, will work very hard to keep a patient

10· ·alive or -- that's not -- scratch that.· Not to keep --

11· ·to keep a patient's organs functioning and keep a

12· ·patient's heart beating.· And it does get more

13· ·challenging the longer we do it.

14· · · · · · Now, we're on top of this right now with Israel.

15· ·We're working very hard, but we're on top of this.· But

16· ·the notion that he is stable and sitting in a corner and

17· ·everything is running on autopilot is -- is a notation

18· ·that is not grounded in reality.· He is aggressively,

19· ·acutely managed moment to moment.

20· · · · · · THE COURT:· And is nutrition an aspect of that?

21· · · · · · THE WITNESS:· So nutrition is a little bit

22· ·problematic.· So I can tell you -- we are providing him

23· ·with a constant infusion of glucose to make sure that his

24· ·blood sugar remains in normal range.

25· · · · · · His intestines -- and intestines in situations
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·1· ·where there's a prolonged resuscitation often suffer a

·2· ·pretty significant injury.

·3· · · · · · And before we put nutrition into the gut, into

·4· ·the intestines, we need to know that those intestines

·5· ·have healed.· If you put a bunch of sugar and protein and

·6· ·fat into a gut that is severely injured, that sets up a

·7· ·situation where pathological bacteria can grow in that

·8· ·nonfunctioning gut.· And you can have catastrophic

·9· ·complications.

10· · · · · · So we are not feeding him into his intestine

11· ·right now because his intestines have not yet indicated

12· ·to us that they are capable of handling and absorbing

13· ·nutrition and putting -- putting nutrition into the

14· ·intestines at this point is -- would be a very risky

15· ·thing to do.

16· · · · · · Now -- I guess I'll leave it at that.

17· · · · · · So the short answer is beyond IV glucose

18· ·infusions and IV infusions of salts and electrolytes,

19· ·that's the only nutrition he is getting right now.

20· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Mr. Jones, anything further?

21· ·BY MR. JONES:

22· ·Q.· · · ·What -- what is the likelihood that you would be

23· ·able to maintain Israel's body in this state for a

24· ·two-week period of time?

25· ·A.· · · ·It will be difficult.· I guess that's the best I
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·1· ·can say.· I don't -- I don't know, you know.· I don't

·2· ·know what he is going to do.· I can tell you that last

·3· ·night that Israel's sodium dropped to a level that in

·4· ·somebody with a functioning brain would have caused

·5· ·seizures.· And the doctor who was taking care of him last

·6· ·night had to stop the vasopressin infusion altogether

·7· ·because his sensitivity to it suddenly went up.

·8· · · · · · And the sodium is coming back up now because the

·9· ·body is starting to get rid of that free water that was

10· ·holding on, was diluting the sodium in his body.

11· · · · · · So we are -- we are monitoring him very closely.

12· ·But as I said earlier, no physician is as good as a

13· ·functioning brain at regulating the physiology of a human

14· ·body.· And anyone who thinks they are is naive or

15· ·arrogant.· But, you know, we'll try.· We're going to keep

16· ·trying, but I can tell you that those kinds of

17· ·fluctuations are going to happen.· And it may be that one

18· ·of them happens and his body just shuts down.

19· · · · · · Often what I see in kids who go on to transplant

20· ·is that at some point their body stops responding to the

21· ·adrenaline that we infuse and their blood pressure starts

22· ·to drop.· And that also can be problematic.· That has not

23· ·happened yet with Israel, but it could happen today.· It

24· ·could happen tomorrow, and we could pour more and more

25· ·into him and try our best to keep that blood pressure up.
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·1· ·In my experience, sooner or later, our efforts to mimic

·2· ·the brain starts to fall short.

·3· · · · · · THE COURT:· I understand.· Anything further,

·4· ·Mr. Jones?

·5· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· Just with that background -- I

·6· ·just want to point out to the Court that -- so we're here

·7· ·to determine whether or not the temporary order should be

·8· ·continued.

·9· · · · · · And my comment is that under Health and Safety

10· ·Code Section 7180 and 7181, Israel has been found to be

11· ·dead.

12· · · · · · THE COURT:· And, therefore, the parent should

13· ·not have the opportunity to have an independent

14· ·evaluation?

15· · · · · · MR. JONES:· They had.· We are the independent --

16· · · · · · THE COURT:· They're not entitled to have their

17· ·own independent evaluation at this point in time,

18· ·somebody outside of Kaiser?

19· · · · · · MR. JONES:· I think if they -- if you look at

20· ·the Dority case --

21· · · · · · THE COURT:· Just answer my question.· Are the

22· ·parents entitled to have an independent evaluation

23· ·outside of Kaiser at this point in time?

24· · · · · · MR. JONES:· No.· No.· Because there's no --

25· · · · · · THE COURT:· Your position is no?
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·1· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · THE COURT:· Go ahead, sir.

·3· · · · · · MR. JONES:· No, because there's nothing that

·4· ·suggests there need -- there needs to be.· There's no

·5· ·complicating factors.· There's no -- you know, we're not

·6· ·the facility where, you know, there was care rendered

·7· ·that might be questionable.· There is nothing that raises

·8· ·the issue.· In fact, if you look at the Dority case which

·9· ·was cited in the paper --

10· · · · · · THE COURT:· I understand.· Dority says that

11· ·there has to be a sufficient showing of a reasonable

12· ·probability that a mistake has been made in the diagnosis

13· ·of brain death or that it was not made in accordance with

14· ·accepted medical standards.· That's the standard in

15· ·Dority.· I'm familiar with it.

16· · · · · · I'm also very familiar -- I'll let you both

17· ·know -- with traumatic brain injury cases, were my

18· ·specialty, my niche, when I was in private practice.· So

19· ·I'm familiar with that at least from a lay perspective.

20· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Sure.· So there was the -- the test

21· ·at U.C. Davis, the first one.· There was a confirmation

22· ·at Kaiser and then another confirmation.· So there's been

23· ·three tests, two by the independent facility.

24· · · · · · Where in the law is there a suggestion that

25· ·there should be yet another one?· What's the offer of
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·1· ·proof that any of the tests have been conducted

·2· ·improperly or there's some suggestion that the results

·3· ·would be different if we did this one or if we did this

·4· ·100 times?· There is none.

·5· · · · · · THE COURT:· All right.· I understand.· All

·6· ·right.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · I'm going to allow the parents that opportunity

·8· ·to see whether or not they can present that evidence.

·9· ·Okay.· I'm going to extend -- and, Ms. Snyder, this is

10· ·without prejudice to you for any further examination

11· ·should we get to a point of evidentiary hearing and

12· ·proceeding with respect to bringing back Dr. Myette for

13· ·examination by her.· If it gets to that point.· Okay.

14· · · · · · But right now, I am going to extend the

15· ·temporary restraining order and give Mr. Stinson and

16· ·Ms. Fonseca the opportunity to -- I'm not going to extend

17· ·it for two weeks, though.· I'm not going to do that.· I'm

18· ·going to have us back here next Friday, April 22nd, at

19· ·9:00 o'clock in this department.

20· · · · · · In the meantime, the order issued yesterday by

21· ·Judge Pineschi remains in full force and effect until

22· ·that time with the inclusion that any present nutritional

23· ·aspect that is being provided will continue in the manner

24· ·that it has been.

25· · · · · · Yes, sir.
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·1· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Sorry, Judge.

·2· · · · · · I just want to raise the do not resuscitate

·3· ·issue.· Quite frankly, it is -- it's almost inhumane to

·4· ·the staff to have to treat a deceased body and provide

·5· ·CPR and resuscitate -- if the organs start to fail.

·6· · · · · · THE COURT:· Ms. Snyder.

·7· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I believe, Your Honor, the order

·8· ·that is now going to be extended mentions "reasonable

·9· ·efforts."

10· · · · · · So the parents certainly understand that their

11· ·son is -- has suffered a severe injury.· They -- they are

12· ·aware of that, and they -- they know that things could

13· ·change.· We also know that things haven't.· He has

14· ·been -- what the doctors have told the parents is that he

15· ·has been stable with clearly the assistance of physicians

16· ·at Kaiser.· We are also aware of that and are very

17· ·grateful of that.

18· · · · · · THE COURT:· If I can interject.· Keep that

19· ·thought for a moment.

20· · · · · · Of all the process I went through this morning,

21· ·parents, I hope you understand that I've allowed Dr.

22· ·Myette for the benefit of not only the Court hearing it,

23· ·but for you hearing it directly from him, as extensive as

24· ·he has outlined all this information as well.· I hope you

25· ·understand that.
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·1· · · · · · MR. STINSON:· Yes, we do.· Thank you so much,

·2· ·Your Honor.

·3· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Go ahead.· I didn't mean to

·4· ·interrupt.

·5· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· That's okay.· That really was all

·6· ·that the -- the order mentions "reasonable measures."

·7· · · · · · THE COURT:· Well, the order indicates that

·8· ·Kaiser is ordered to continue to provide cardiopulmonary

·9· ·support as is currently being provided and that to

10· ·provide medications currently administered to him.· And

11· ·they can adjust the medications to the extent possible to

12· ·maintain his stability, given his present condition.

13· ·That's what the order states and that's going to

14· ·continue --

15· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Okay.

16· · · · · · THE COURT:· -- in effect at this time, along

17· ·with the now what I've included, so that it's clear, the

18· ·nutritional aspect of it.

19· · · · · · So I'm going to continue with that order.· All

20· ·right.· We'll see you folks next Friday, April 22, at

21· ·9:00 o'clock in this department.· The order will continue

22· ·to that date and we'll see where we stand at that point

23· ·in time.

24· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Thank you, Your Honor.

25· · · · · · MR. JONES:· Sorry.· I failed to address one
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·1· ·other important aspect.

·2· · · · · · So to the degree that an outside physician is

·3· ·going to come to Kaiser and perform an evaluation, they

·4· ·need to be licensed in California.· They need to be a --

·5· ·you know, a physician in the -- you know, trained in a

·6· ·proper field to make a diagnosis of death.

·7· · · · · · THE COURT:· Right.· I would -- I would hope that

·8· ·you folks would meet and confer over any such issues and

·9· ·that Kaiser, of course, would make its facilities,

10· ·testing, measures available to such a person as well.

11· · · · · · MR. JONES:· We just need about 24 hours to get

12· ·privileges and do all the work that we need to do on our

13· ·end.

14· · · · · · THE COURT:· Well, we are under a one-week time

15· ·period right now.· I know your concerns there.· 24

16· ·hours -- if they find somebody Thursday at noon isn't

17· ·going to cut it, right?· So, yet, they would be within

18· ·the time parameters of the order.· I would just hope that

19· ·you folks would work with each other on that.

20· · · · · · MR. JONES:· We'll do our best.

21· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Thank you.· Thank you.· We

22· ·appreciate that very much.

23· · · · · · MR. STINSON:· Thank you very much, Your Honor.

24· · · · · · THE COURT:· Does anyone want a written order on

25· ·this or is this fine?
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·1· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· I think it would be helpful if

·2· ·that's not too much trouble.

·3· · · · · · THE COURT:· I'll provide a written order and

·4· ·additional aspect of it.· Thank you, folks.

·5· · · · · · MS. SNYDER:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · (The matter was concluded.)
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